
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental 
Health) Trust 

Date: Friday, 22nd July, 2022 
Time: 2.30 pm. 

 Venue: Number One Riverside 
 
Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair for 2022/ 2023  

 

 To appoint the Chair and Vice Chair of the Joint Scrutiny Panel for 
Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust for 2022/23.  

 

 
2   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
3   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them. 

 

 
4   Minutes  3 - 6 

 To consider the minutes of the Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care 
(Mental Health) Trust meeting held on 22nd March 2022. 

 

 
5   Terms of Reference  7 - 11 

 To note the Terms of Reference of the Joint Scrutiny Panel for 
Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust. 

 

 
6   Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust Presentation  12 - 28 

 To consider a presentation from Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust 
relating to:  

 Financial Plan 2022/23 
 Major Capital Scheme 2022/2034   
 Workforce Update  

 

Public Document Pack



7   Schedule of Meetings and Work Programme 2022/ 2023  29 - 30 

 To agree a schedule of meetings and work programme for 2022/ 2023.  

 

Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental Health) Trust Members 
 
Councillor Dickie Davies                                  Councillor Roger Brown  
Councillor Joan Grimshaw                               Councillor Mary Whitby 
Councillor Aron Thornley                                  Councillor Alanna Vine 
Councillor Colin McLaren                                 Councillor Stephen Homer  
Councillor Clive Patrick                                    Councillor Teresa Smith  
Councillor Louie Hamblett                                Councillor Angela Cosgrove 
Councillor Aiza Rashid                                     Councillor Angela Smith  
Councillor Patricia Mary Dale  
 
 
 
For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Janine Jenkinson, Senior Governance and Committee Officer 
01706 924616 
janine.jenkinson@rochdale.gov.uk



JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL FOR PENNINE CARE (MENTAL HEALTH) 
TRUST 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 22 March 2022 

 
PRESENT: Councillor McLaren ((Oldham MBC) in the Chair); Councillors 
Dale (Rochdale MBC), Davies (Stockport MBC), Grimshaw (Bury MBC), 
Hamblett (Oldham MBC), Patrick (Tameside MBC) and Wright (Stockport 
MBC). 
 
OFFICERS:  N. Littler (Executive Director of Workforce - Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust), N. Tamanis (Executive Director of Finance - Pennine Care 
NHS Foundation Trust) and J. Jenkinson (Senior Governance and Committee 
Services Officer) 
 
 

22 APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Sullivan 
(Rochdale MBC) and Councillor Whitby (Bury MBC). 
 

23 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

24 MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care 
(Mental Health) Trust meeting held on 1st February 2022 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

25 PENNINE CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST PRESENTATION 
 
The Chair welcomed all to the meeting and invited Nicola Littler (Executive 
Director of Workforce) and Nicola Tamanis (Executive Director of Finance) to 
introduce the presentation. 
 
Workforce Update 
 
The Executive Director of Workforce provided an update to the Panel that 
outlined the key workforce challenges faced by the Trust. 
 
Members were provided with information regarding the sickness absence rate 
over the last 12 months.  It was noted that the main reasons for absence 
were: anxiety, stress, depression, and other psychiatric illnesses.    
 
The Panel noted that the Trust currently had a 20% vacancy rate.  The 
Executive Director explained that the attrition rate was stable and vacant 
posts were often internally filled. However, the Trust was making concerted 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



efforts to recruit external candidates into vacant posts. It was reported that the 
main reason for the use of bank and agency staff was to cover for 
establishment vacancies.  It was explained that during the peak of the 
pandemic the Trust had struggled to fill vacant posts due to illness and this 
had challenged the Trust’s day-to-day business continuity. 
 
The Executive Director of Workforce reported that to address workforce 
challenges the Trust had put in place recruitment campaigns, new 
roles/trainee programmes and retention initiatives.  Health and social care 
career opportunities were promoted across schools, colleges, communities 
and joint recruitment events.  
 
In collaboration with other sector partners, the Trust was committed to 
reducing barriers to employment often faced by those with experience of 
homelessness, looked after children, former military service employees, and 
people with learning disabilities and autism.  In addition, cross sector working 
and volunteering opportunities were promoted. 
 
The Chair then invited comments and questions from Panel Members. 
 
During the course of the discussion the following points were raised: 
 

 Members noted that a high vacancy rate created additional pressures 
on existing staff and could result in higher sickness levels.  The 
Executive Director explained that recruitment to the sector was a 
national challenge and the Trust recognised the importance of staff 
retention.   

 With regard to sickness absence, it was reported that the Trust’s levels 
were comparable to peer organisations within Greater Manchester and 
those nationally.  Bank and agency staff tended to be used to fill front 
line rather than back office staff vacancies.  However, it was explained 
that during the pandemic sickness rates in back office and front line 
staff were similar. 

 In relation to training opportunities, the Executive Director listed a range 
of apprenticeships (trainee nursing associates/ top-up degree nurse 
apprenticeships) and training roles (trainee: healthcare support worker, 
assistant psychological practitioners and mental health wellbeing 
practitioners) that had been developed to encourage staff recruitment 
and retention. 

 It was explained that the healthcare support role would be the first 
cohort of trainees to undertake the programme and therefore attrition 
rates and appropriate wraparound support for students would be 
monitored and assessed.  

 The Executive Director explained that further work would be 
undertaken with schools and colleges to promote careers in the 
healthcare sector. 

 In relation to pay within the sector, it was noted that NHS grading 
appeared complicated and opaque to those not familiar with the tier 
system.  It was suggested that the Trust displayed pay grading in a 

Page 4



straightforward format on its website to ensure remuneration was clear 
to prospective candidates. 

 It was noted that some university students were offered casual social 
worker/carer placements during holiday periods which provided work 
experience and meant students established relationships with potential 
employers whilst they studied for a degree. 

  
 
Draft Revenue and Capital Budget Plans 2022/23 
 
Ahead of providing a presentation to the Panel, the Executive Director of 
Finance reported that the national NHS planning guidance for 2022/23 had 
been published on the 24th December 2021. At the time of publication, the 
immediate operational focus for the NHS was on delivering the objectives set 
out in the letter ‘Preparing the NHS for the potential impact of the Omicron 
variant’.  The planning timetable and submission deadline had been extended 
to the end of April 2022 with draft plans due in mid-March 2022. 
 
The Executive Director therefore explained that she was able to provide an 
update on the financial planning framework and progress to date, but was not 
in a position to present the final capital and revenue budgets to the Panel.  
 
It was explained that the Trust was part of an Integrated Care System across 
Greater Manchester and the capital allocation and a proportion of revenue 
allocation were determined through negotiation with Greater Manchester 
partner organisations; and presently these discussions had not yet concluded.  
 
In relation to finance and contracting arrangements 2022/23, it was reported 
that the settlement assumed that the NHS would deliver significant efficiencies 
to address the excess costs driven by the pandemic response from the 
current system envelopes to fair share allocations via a ‘convergence’ 
adjustment.  It was anticipated that one-year revenue and three-year capital 
allocations would be issued with increased clarity and certainty over capital 
allocations. 
 
Following the conclusion of the presentation the Chair invited comments and 
questions from Panel Members. 
 
During the course of the discussion the following points were raised: 
 

 In relation to the 5% efficiency saving target, it was asked how likely it 
was that the target would be delivered. In response, it was explained 
that historically 1% or 2% saving targets had been achieved.  It was 
anticipated that a 3% saving target could be delivered, however, there 
‘was a long way to go’ to reach this target.  The Trust recognised that 
savings programmes could be negatively felt by employees, particularly 
given the strains of the pandemic, and therefore ongoing engagement 
with the clinical workforce to monitor the savings programme would be 
undertaken.  

Page 5



 In response to a question regarding inflation costs and energy prices, 
the Executive Director reported that rising costs had been built into the 
savings programme.  Gross inflation had been funded at 2.8% with a 
1.1% efficiency factor.   

 It was noted that there had been a reduction in system support funding 
in the 2022/23 draft Revenue Plan, which included a reduction in 
Covid-19 funding and a 0.6% convergence adjustment. 

 With regards to the Capital Plan and proposals to address the budget 
deficit, it was explained that a range of efficiencies would be utilised, 
including investment in green energy, a digital strategy programme and 
capital investment.   

 
Psychiatric Intensive Care Unit (PICU) / Stopford House Refurbishment 
Update 
 
Panel Members noted: 
 

 That the male PICU was due to complete in June 2022 and open in 
July 2022. 

 The design sign off had been reached for the female PICU (located in 
Stockport), which met the revised PICU business case benefits criteria. 
The project was now progressing to tender stage. 

 Stopford House refurbishment – successful collaboration with Stockport 
Council had been undertaken to deliver a new Children and Adolescent 
Mental Health Service in Stockport. Stopford House was due to open in 
June 2022. 

 
RESOLVED – 
 

I. That the presentation be noted. 
 

II. That a visit to Stopford House be arranged in the new municipal year 
for Panel Members. 

 
III. That the following items be scheduled for future meetings in June / July 

2022: 
 

 Revenue and Capital Budget Plans 2022/23 update 
 Building replacement programme update 
 Workforce update – staffing vacancies and impact on the budget 
 
 

26 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
RESOLVED – That the next meeting of the Joint Scrutiny Panel for Pennine 
Care (Mental Health) Trust be held on 6th July 2022. 
 

Page 6



 1 

TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORKING PRINCIPLES 
FOR THE JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE (JHOSC) FOR THE PENNINE CARE 
FOUNDATION TRUST 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Purpose 

To scrutinise generic services provided by the Pennine Care Foundation 

Trust relating to the health of the population in Bury, Oldham, Rochdale 
Stockport and Tameside and contribute to the development of policy to 
improve health and reduce health inequalities in respect of services provided 
by the Hospitals. 

Membership 

The Membership of the JHOSC will be made up of three Councillors from  

each of the five constituent Local Authorities (Bury, Oldham, Rochdale, 
Stockport and Tameside). 

Key Objectives and Responsibilities 

1. The JHOSC has the delegated powers of the five Local Authorities, Bury,  

Oldham, Rochdale, Stockport and Tameside to undertake all the 
necessary fnctions of Health Scrutiny in accordance with Part 4, Health 
Scrutiny by Local authorities, of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health 
and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013, relating to  

reviewing and scrutinising health service matters provided by the Trust’s  

Hospitals. Such matters to include:- 

(a) Receipt and consideration of performance information relating to the 
Pennine Care Foundation Trust; 

(b) Receipt and consideration of any Annual reports and Quality 
Accounts of the Trust or outcomes of official inspections e.g. the Care 
Quality Commission, Monitor, PLACE (Patient Led Assessments of 
the Care Environment) inspections, National Clinical Audit and 
Patients’ Outcome Programme.  

(c) Improving access to NHS services  

(d) The review of proposals for the implementation of new initiatives 
which affect people in Bury, Oldham, Rochdale Stockport and 
Tameside in respect of patients and public involvement. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 2 

(e) Review proposals for consideration of or items relating to proposed 
substantial development/substantial variations to services provided by 
the Trust which affect the Authorities referred to. This could include:- 

• Changes in Accessibility of Services and the rationale for those 
changes. 

• The impact of proposals on the wider community and on other 
services including economic impact, transport and 
regeneration; 

• The number of patients affected and the impact of the changes 
on the patients. 

• Changes in the methods of service delivery, for example 
moving a particular service into community settings rather than 
being entirely hospital based.  

2. To review the procedural outcome of consultations referred to in 1(e) 
above, particularly the rationale behind contested proposals. 

3. To undertake in-depth thematic studies in respect of services to which 
the Trust contributes where such studies can be undertaken on a Trust 
wide area basis. 

4. To take account of relevant information available and in particular 
relevant information provided by Healthwatch under their power of 
referral. 

5. To maintain effective links with Healthwatch in the five local authority 
areas of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale Stockport and Tameside and give 
consideration to the co-option of appropriate patient representatives at 
the appropriate time. 

6. To co-opt people onto the Joint Committee in order to provide 
appropriate expertise. 

7. To commission pieces of research as and when the need arises from 
within the JHOSC budget.  

8. To promote the Joint Scrutiny Function in the constituent authorities 
and raise public awareness. 

9. To refer locality based issues to the respective local authority for 
investigation. 

NB: Each authority reserves the right to undertake individual scrutiny of 
the Trust’s proposals/performance that specifically individually affects 
their local communities. 

Page 8



 3 

WORKING PRINCIPLES 

The working principles have been developed to provide a framework for 
scrutiny to take place. 

Membership 

Each constituent Local Authority (Bury, Oldham, Rochdale, Stockport and 
Tameside) shall appoint 3 Councillors to the Joint Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee(JHOSC) each Municipal Year. The JHOSC shall therefore have 
15 Members. 

If a Member of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the 
Pennine Care Hospitals NHS Trust is unable to attend a Committee Meeting 
that Member may ask a substitute Member to attend on his/her behalf in 
accordance with the conventions of their Council. Substitute Members may 
attend meetings to take the place of the ordinary Member for whom they are 
the designated substitute where the ordinary Member will be absent for the 
whole of the meeting. The Chair of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for the Pennine Care Foundation Trust should be notified via the 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Officer for the Pennine Care Foundation 
Trust. 

Meetings  
The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) is a committee 
established by the five constituent local authorities of Bury, Oldham, Rochdale 
Stockport and Tameside. 

A schedule of meetings will be agreed by the Committee at the beginning of 
each municipal year. 

Additional meetings may be convened by the Committee. 

A Chairman and a Vice-Chairman will be elected by the Committee at the first 
meeting of each municipal year. 

A quorum of three of the appointed members will apply. 

Any personal, prejudicial or pecuniary interests held by members should be 
declared on any item of business at a meeting, either under the agenda item 
Declarations of Interest or as soon as it becomes apparent. 

Decisions will be taken by consensus. Where it is not possible to reach a 
consensus, a decision will be reached by a simple majority of those members 
present at the meeting. Where there are equal votes the Chairman of the 
meeting will have the casting vote. 

The agenda and supporting papers will be circulated at least five working 
days in advance of meetings. The minutes will be circulated to those with 

Page 9



 4 

actions as soon as possible. Minutes, agendas and papers will be published 
on the JHOSC’s website pages. 

Meetings shall be held in public with specific time allocated for public question 
time. 

Work Programme 
A Work Programme will be developed annually by the Committee. The Work 
Programme will take into account the priorities of the Pennine Care 
Foundation Trust, national and local areas of concern, health priorities and 
health inequalities. 

Principles for Effective Scrutiny 
Scrutiny undertaken through the Joint Committee will be focused on improving 
the health and health services for residents in areas served by the committee 
through the provision and commissioning of acute hospital services for those 
residents. 

Improving health and health services through scrutiny will be open and 
transparent to Members of the Local Authority, health organisations and 
members of the public. 

All Members, officers, members of the public and patient representatives 
involved in improving health and health services through scrutiny will be 
treated with courtesy and respect at all times. 

Improving health and health services through scrutiny is most likely to be 
achieved through co-operation and collaboration between representatives of 
Local Councils, the Pennine Care Foundation Trust, representatives of 
Healthwatch and the Clinical Commissioning Groups commissioning hospital 
services. 

Co-operation and joint working will be developed over time through mutual 
trust and respect with the objective of improving health and health services for 
local people through effective scrutiny. 

All agencies will be committed to working together in mutual co-operation to 
share knowledge and deal with requests for information and reports for the 
JHOSC within the time scales set down. 

The JHOSC will give reasonable notice of requests for information, reports 
and attendance at meetings. 

The JHOSC, whilst working within a framework of collaboration, mutual trust 
and co-operation, will always operate independently of the NHS and have the 
authority to hold views independent of other Members of representative 
Councils and their Executives.   

The independence of the Joint Committees must not be compromised by its 
Members, by other Members of the Council or any of the Councils’ 
Executives, or by any other organisation it works with. 

Page 10



 5 

Those involved in improving health and health services through scrutiny will 
always declare any particular interest that they may have in particular pieces 
of work or investigation being undertaken by the Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and thus may withdraw from the meeting as they consider 
appropriate. 

The Joint Health Scrutiny Committee will not to take up and scrutinise 
individual concerns or individual complaints. 

Where a wider principle has been highlighted through such a complaint or 
concern, the Joint Overview & Scrutiny Committee should consider if further 
scrutiny is required. In such circumstances it is the principle and not the 
individual concern that will be subject to scrutiny. 

Page 11



Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust updates to Joint 

Scrutiny Panel - 22nd July 2022

Presented by 

Anthony Hassall, Chief Executive, 

& Nicky Tamanis, Executive Director of Finance

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 6



Financial Plan 2022 / 23 & 
Capital Plan

• Presented by Nicky Tamanis, 

Executive Director of Finance

P
age 13



2022/23 Financial PlanP
age 14



• The Greater Manchester Integrated Care System submitted balanced revenue and capital 

plans on the 20th June 2022 

• Achievement of a balanced plan, will require the delivery of a system efficiency somewhere 

in the range of £50-£100m in addition to the challenging efficiency plans already built into 

organisational plans. 

• There is a collective responsibility of all organisations in the system to manage this risk, 

reviewing the opportunities for mitigation including:

• Emerging system wide efficiency programmes

• Identification of further system wide flexibilities and application of additional 
allocations to the system throughout the year to offset expenditure plans. 

• Review of capacity i.e. Critical Care beds, discharge cost

• These risks and mitigations will be managed through the system Financial Recovery Board, 

with the governance for this group currently being finalised

GM System Summary

P
age 15



PCFT Final Revenue Plan

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

£m

Operating income from patient care activities 247.6 

Other operating income 6.6 

Employee expenses - 191.0 

Operating expenses - 59.7 

OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 3.5 

FINANCE COSTS

Finance income -

Finance expense - 1.2 

PDC dividends payable/refundable - 2.3 

NET FINANCE COSTS - 3.5 

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR - 0.0 

Key risks remain in 
the delivery of the 
financial plan 
including but not 
limited to efficiency 
plans at £11.3m (5%)

Income includes 
System Support of 
£11.2m

P
age 16



Mental Health Investment: 

Long Term Plan

PCFT
£m

MHIS - continuation of existing schemes 6.0 

New Schemes  1.0 

Subtotal MHIS 7.0 

SDF: continuation of existing schemes 7.4

SDF: New schemes being mobilised 4.6

Subtotal SDF 12.0
Total Funding : Continuation of existing 
schemes 13.4

Total Funding : New Schemes 5.6

Total Funding (excl. inflation uplifts) 19.0

Long Term Plan Investment will 
support:

Children and Young People –
community and crisis, eating 
disorder services, 18-25

MH Support Teams
Community Adult SMI
Other adults, hubs, crisis
LD & Autism
Discharge Planning, IAPT and 
dementia

P
age 17



PCFT – Capital Plan
2022/23

£'000

Digital Civica incl EPMA and EDMS 416

E-rostering 278

IT - cyber 0

IT - replacement devices 0

IT - networks 0

Estates

Estates utilisation, essential works 

and minor improvements:
416

Medical Equipment 40

Backlog maintenance 510

Patient safety - reduce ligature risks 61

Window replacement (£4.8m) 0

Estates rationalisation 0

Female PICU 1,397

Male PICU 647

Stockport HYM reprovision 200

Move to 3KP from Humphrey House 850

Grace's Place 1,168

Bealeys Hospital 0

Estates development - Haughton 

House and Mews
0

Education Centre 0

Trust HQ redesign 0

Invest to save and contingency 0

Total 5,983

PDC Funded Schemes

PICU 400

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 6,383

Capital Scheme Description

• GM System is allocated a capital 
envelope, providers agreed a set of 
principles to manage the system envelope

• Envelope = £227.8m agreed within an 
allowable tolerance of £8.8m

• Targeted funds also available e.g. 
allocation for Mental Health of £8.1m for 
Crisis/Urgent Care

P
age 18



2022/23 Major Capital 

Scheme Update
PICU

• Planned Handover: 15th July

• Opening date: 31st August 2022

Stopford House 

• Planned Handover: 12th August

• Opening date: 22nd August 

P
age 19



Workforce update – staffing 
vacancies and impact on the 
budget

• Presented by Anthony Hassall, Chief 

Executive 

P
age 20



Staff in post

3,542 

3,579 

3,656 
3,643 

3,693 
3,709 

2022 / 01 2022 / 02 2022 / 03 2022 / 04 2022 / 05 2022 / 06

P
age 21



Leavers

P
age 22



Bank and Agency

Bank Agency

P
age 23



Bank and Agency usage

P
age 24



Vacancy areas

53% of current vacancies are qualified 

nurses

25% Healthcare support workers

15% Psychology

P
age 25



NHS Staff Survey 2021P
age 26



People Plan themes

P
age 27



Improvement actions

Culture and quality - Embed Just Culture, Peer review, Clinical 

supervision and enhance Quality dashboard

Equality, Diversity and Inclusion – Anti-racism action plan, WRES, 

WDES and gender pay improvement areas

Reducing violence and aggression to staff – respect/zero 

tolerance campaign, support for staff 

Appraisal – support career conversations, inclusive development 

opportunities and accountability for compliance of key targets

Building effective teams – TED tool, Team inclusion programme

Compassionate leaders/Effective managers – assess capacity and 

skills, management development programme aligned to behaviours 

framework

P
age 28



JOINT SCRUTINY PANEL FOR PENNINE CARE (MENTAL HEALTH) TRUST 

WORK PROGRAMME 2022 / 2023  

  

22nd July 2022 

Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair of the Panel 
 

To appoint the Chair and Vice Chair of the Joint 
Scrutiny Panel for Pennine Care (Mental Health) 
Trust for 2022/23. 
 

To consider a presentation from Pennine Care NHS 
Foundation Trust relating to:  
 

 Financial Plan 2022/23 

 Major Capital Scheme 2022/23   

 Workforce Update 
 

To receive an update presentation from Pennine 
Care NHS Foundation Trust 

 
  
 

Schedule of meetings and work programme for 2022/ 
2023 

To agree a schedule of meetings and work 
programme for 2022/ 2023. 
 

 

31st October 2022 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7



 

12th January 2023  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

16th March 2023 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Meetings are currently scheduled to be held at 2 p.m. in Number One Riverside, Rochdale. 

P
age 30


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Terms of Reference
	TERMS OF REFERENCE AND WORKING PRINCIPLES FOR THE JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (JHOSC) FOR THE PENNINE CARE FOUNDATION TRUST
	TERMS OF REFERENCE
	Purpose
	Membership
	Key Objectives and Responsibilities

	WORKING PRINCIPLES
	Membership
	Meetings
	Work Programme
	Principles for Effective Scrutiny



	6 Pennine Care NHS Foundation Trust Presentation
	7 Schedule of Meetings and Work Programme 2022/ 2023

